
Exhibit 
KOREA MARKETING COMMITTEE (KMC) MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, August 19, 2025, at 3:30 p.m.  
GVB Main Conference Room and Zoom 
Zoom Link:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89262397537?pwd=22qPi9GPwQWBbBtZrJMGt6d6dPLCmv.1 
Meeting ID: 892 6239 7537 
Passcode: visitguam 

*online attendance
Members Present: 

1. Arluis Wedding*
2. Baldyga Group - Annie Joo
3. Crowne Plaza Resort Guam*
4. DON DON DONKI Guam - K. Dotimas*, J. Aguilar*
5. Dusit Thani Guam Resort - Elisha Lee
6. Fish Eye Marine Park*
7. Guam Hana Tour / Korea Guam Travel Association (KGTA) -

Jong In Cheong
8. G. Kim*
9. Guam Premier Outlets - Estella E.*

Suzanne Perez*
10. Hilton Guam Resort & Spa - In Cha*
11. Hoshino Resorts RISONARE - Albert Oh
12. Hyatt Regency Guam - Madelaine Cosico*
13. International Dining Concepts, LLC - Julia*
14. Leopalace Guam Resort - Keiko Takano*
15. Lotte Duty Free - Jaejun Lee
16. Lotte Hotel Guam - Sunny Kim*
17. Micronesia Mall - Anna Tenorio*, Francis Lira*
18. Pacific Islands Club - Young Kim, Sage Han
19. RIHGA Royal Laguna Guam Resort - Nicole Han*
20. Sentry Hospitality LLC - Valerie Carbullido*
21. Stroll - James Rosenberg
22. The Tsubaki Tower - JM*
23. The Westin Resort Guam - Yoshi Otani* Julia Kim*, Heejin Han*

Members Absent: 
1. 7-Day Supermarket
2. Bayview Hotel
3. Docomo Pacific
4. Goodwind Development Corporation
5. Guam Guam Style Consulting
6. Guam Plaza Resort & Spa
7. Guam Reef Hotel
8. Hard Rock Cafe
9. Hotel Nikko Guam
10. Hotel Tano
11. Jae Yu
12. Japan Buslines
13. Jeju Air
14. Kloppenburg Enterprises
15. Lam Lam Tours (T.P. Micronesia, Inc.)
16. Linden Akademia
17. Nissan Rent A Car Guam
18. Royal Orchid Guam Hotel
19. Spa Ayualam (Premier Beauty and Spa Guam, Inc) 
20. Tommy Hilfiger
21. Triple J Enterprises, Inc.
22. Tumon Sands Plaza
23. United Airlines
24. University of Guam
25. Valley of the Latte

GVB Board/Management/Staff Present: 
1. GVB Director, KMC Chairman – Ho Eun
2. GVB President & CEO – Régine Biscoe Lee
3. GVB Vice President – Gerry Perez
4. GVB Director of Global Marketing – Nadine Leon Guerrero
5. GVB Senior Marketing Manager, Korea – Margaret Sablan
6. GVB Senior Marketing Manager, Korea – Nicole Benavente
7. GVB Marketing Manager, Korea – Cierra Sulla
8. GVB Web & IT Coordinator Assistant – Brian Cha



 
9.​ GVB South Korea Country Manager – Jay Park* 
10.​GVB Korea Office* 

 
1.​ CALL TO ORDER 

 
●​ KMC Chairman Mr. Ho Eun called the meeting to order at 3:30 pm. 

 
2. REPORT OF COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN 

●​ Chairman Eun reported that a final budget is expected by the end of September, emphasizing the 
critical importance of the airline subsidy. He stressed the need to communicate with Korean partners 
once the budget is finalized, expressing a significant issue with airline load factors. He explained that 
due to the Department of Justice, two merging companies are compelled to maintain a certain seat 
capacity (e.g., 90% of 2019 capacity), despite not being profitable. Chairman Eun questioned the 
sustainability of this situation, expressing concern that Guam could be adversely affected even with 
an existing agreement, as the Department of Justice and the Korean company may not coordinate 
effectively. Therefore, GVB must proactively commit and communicate in advance. He suggested 
that Guam needs to survive for at least a year and a half to ensure continued employment for all 
employees on the island. 
 

3. REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 
●​ President & CEO Régine Biscoe Lee detailed GVB's request to the Guam Legislature for an $11.1 

million supplemental budget. This funding is intended to provide temporary airline incentives, 
bridging a critical 18-month period, as Chairman Eun mentioned. She emphasized her hope that the 
Legislature will recognize this as a valuable investment. 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
○​ Chairman Eun inquired if the Business Privilege Tax (BPT) and corporate income tax are 

both included in the tax calculation, which Mrs. Lee confirmed. Chairman Eun then asked if 

 
 
 
 



 
employee withholding tax was also included, and Mrs. Lee affirmed this. Chairman Eun 
concluded that, from a government perspective, Guam would see a tenfold return on 
investment. 

○​ Mrs. Lee reiterated that the numbers are not arbitrary and the source is from Oxford 
Economics.  

 

 
  

 
 
 
 



 

 
○​ Chairman Eun reported that GVB is working with an airline industry expert and consultant, 

Charles Duncan, former president of Continental. He emphasized that GVB seeks to 
maximize benefits from these engagements and also aims to foster sustainable relationships 
with airline partners.  

 
 
 
 



 

 
○​ Chairman Eun inquired whether the airline subsidy funding would be specified or if there 

was flexibility. Mrs. Lee responded that GVB requested flexibility to avoid being locked into a 
set amount. She added that disclosing the amount to the legislature would make it too easy 
for airlines to know what's available. Chairman Eun emphasized the need to maintain airline 
subsidies for Korea until the end of next year, while Japan offers more leeway. He reiterated 
the need for room for adjustment. Mrs. Lee suggested potentially including the Philippines 
and Taiwan. She explained that for Korea, visitor numbers are strong if seats are available, 
and load factors are high for Korea, Taiwan, and the Philippines. However, Japan is different, 
and some requests for Japan include marketing dollars. 

 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

○​ Chairman Eun requested emphasis on the impact of 6,000 job losses on families. 
 

●​ Senior Marketing Manager Mrs. Margaret Sablan presented the latest arrival numbers.  
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
○​ Chairman Eun noted that Korea was still behind in comparison to 2024. Director of Global 

Marketing Ms. Nadine Leon Guerrreo explained it could be attributed to various factors from 
the beginning of the year, such as the Korean Air and Asiana merger, the martial law, and 
the won rate.  

 
4. MARKET UPDATES 

●​ Mrs. Sablan presented the travel trade update in Korea and the airline schedule for August, 
September and October.  

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
●​ Mrs. Sablan presented the competitive destination update.  

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
○​ Chairman Eun raised the point of emphasizing Guam's ocean in comparison with other 

destinations, noting that someone had commented on its cleanliness and clarity. Mrs. Lee 
suggested that the water and air quality index could be measured. 

 
 
5.  OLD BUSINESS 

●​ Senior Marketing Manager Ms. Nicole Benavente presented the accomplished marketing projects.   
 
 

 
○​ Ms. Benavente shared the recently completed NPher video with the committee.  

 
 
 
 



 

 
○​ Ms. Benavente highlighted that NPher’s short-form content garnered millions of 

views. Mrs. Sablan extended her gratitude to all the businesses that collaborated 
with GVB for this project.  

 
 
 
 



 

 
○​ Ms. Benavente noted the travel agencies matched GVB’s investments, and it was a 

50-50 support in terms of the budget.  
○​ Chairman Eun highlighted the positive initial impression this promotion creates for 

visitors. 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
  
6.  NEW BUSINESS 

●​ Ms. Benavente presented the ongoing/upcoming marketing projects.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
○​ Ms. Benavente announced that the Press Release was just issued today.  
○​ Chairman Eun inquired about the number of categories. Ms. Benavente responded that the 

optional tours would be classified into night, water, adventure, and culture activities. 
○​ Mrs. Sablan explained that they carefully select influencers and create custom itineraries 

based on their profiles and followers. She emphasized the influencers’ role in showcasing 
the diverse activities available on Guam. 

○​ Mrs. Benavente announced that the online promotion is scheduled to start the first week of 
September. GVB Korea maintains a quarterly microsite on visitguamkr.com for special online 
promotions, which will include a dedicated section for the optional tour promotion. She urged 
the committee to renew their GVB membership, sign up, and submit their visual assets.  

○​ Chairman Eun proposed a collaboration with the Korea Guam Travel Association (KGTA). 
 

 
 
 
 

http://visitguamkr.com


 

 
○​ Ms. Benavente highlighted that GVB will be one of the first advertisers to be featured on the 

new Seoul Station Panorama screen.  

 

 
 
 
 



 
○​ Ms. Benavente thanked the 19 companies participating in the upcoming Korea Roadshow. 

She announced that the Seoul event, originally planned for dinner had been changed to a 
luncheon.  

 
●​ Ms. Benavente presented the FY2025 Budget Summary. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
7. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

○​ Ms. Benavente commended the success of the Tumon Night Market which has been popular 
with both tourists and locals. She shared that the concern of traffic has been brought to the 
attention of the destination department. The Tumon Nigth Market is foreseeable every 
Sunday from 5-9 PM.  

○​ Ms. Benavente announced that the Guam International Dance Festival is scheduled for 
December 6-7, with registration opening on August 27.  
 

●​ The next KMC meeting in Septmeber is to be announced.  
 

COMMITTEE DISCUSSION: 
 

●​ Tumon Night Market  
○​ Chairman Eun asked the committe for feedback on the Tumon Night Market. He explained 

that GVB dedicated 10 Sundays as a testing pilot program. He inquired about the industry's 
interest in continuing the program. Mr. Young Min Kim (Pacific Islands Club) raised concerns 
about parking. Chairman Eun and Ms. Leon Guerrero suggested DFS and Sand Castle 
parking. Mrs. Lee noted that Mr. Monte Mesa (Tumon Sands Plaza/Guam Premier Outlets) 
would allocate space at Tumon Sands Plaza, indicating expanding options as the program 
progresses. Additionally, a free shuttle service has been operating since the second Sunday 
night, running from 4:30 PM to 9:30 PM, with pick-up at GVB/Ypao and drop-off in front of 
the Hyatt. GVB management confirmed they will share the parking map as requested by Mr. 
Kim. Chairman Eun asked the committee if they could support the Tumon Night Market 

 
 
 
 






